
2525 CIRCLE DRIVE • SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 69361 • (308) 630-6243 • FAX (308) 630-6294

CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF
Scottsbluff City Hall Council Chambers
 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE 69361
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

Monday, January 10, 2022
 6:00 PM

1.    Roll Call:  

2. Nebraska open Meetings Act: For all interested parties, a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act 
is posted on a bulletin board at the south wall of the council chambers.

3. Notice of Changes in the Agenda by the City Manager: Additions may not be made to 
this agenda less than 24-hours before the beginning of the meeting unless added under item 4 
of this agenda.

4. Citizens with Items not Scheduled on the Regular Agenda: As required by State Law, no item 
may be considered under this item unless the Planning Commission determines that the matter 
requires an emergency action.

5. Approval of the Planning Commission Minutes From:
A the December 13, 2021 Meeting.

6. New Business :
A Public Hearing - Final Plat

Final Plat of Block 7, Five Oaks Subdivision situated in the Northwest Quarter of Section 14, Township 22 
North, Range 55 West of the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska.

B Public Hearing - Rezone
Rezone of Lot 3, Block 1, Sunset Addition from C-3 Heavy Commercial to R-1A Single-Family Residential 
Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change.

C Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change
Zoning Text Change to Chapter 25 Article 2 regarding the Gateway Green Overlay Zone.

D Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change
Zoning Text Change to Chapter 25 Article 22 regarding Landscaping.

E Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change
Zoning Text Change to Chapter 25 Article 22 regarding Off-Street Parking.

7. Staff Reports:
A (Informational Only):

Upcoming Panhandle Planning Workshop on January 25, 2022
2022 Schedule of Planning Commission Meetings
Annual review of Comprehensive Plan
Annual review of Subdivision and Zoning Code

8. Other Business:
A (Informational Only):

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 1 / 153



2525 CIRCLE DRIVE • SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 69361 • (308) 630-6243 • FAX (308) 630-6294

9. Schedule Meeting:
A Confirm next meeting date of February 14, 2022

10. Adjourn

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 2 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item Appr. Min.1

the December 13, 2021 Meeting.

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 3 / 153



    PLANING COMMISSION MINUTES 
    REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
    December 13, 2021 
    SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 
 
 
     The Planning Commission for the City of Scottsbluff met in regular scheduled meeting on Monday, 
December 13, 2021, at 6:00 PM in the Scottsbluff City Council Chambers at 2525 Circle Drive, 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska. A notice of the meeting was published in the Star-Herald, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city, on December 3, 2021. The notice stated the date, time, and location of the 
meeting, that the meeting was open to the public, and that anyone with a disability desiring reasonable 
accommodation to attend should contact the Development Services office. An agenda was kept current 
and available for public inspection at the Development Services office, provided the Planning 
Commission can modify the agenda at the meeting if it is determined that an emergency so required. A 
copy of the agenda packet was delivered to each Planning Commission member. 
 

1 Chairman Dana Weber called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. Roll call consisted of the 
following members being present, Dana Weber, Angie Aguallo, Becky Estrada, Callen Wayman, 
Dave Gompert, Linda Redfern (Alternate) “Absent”: Anita Chadwick, Mark Westphal, Henry 
Huber, Jim Zitterkopf. City Officials present were Zachary Glaubius, Secretary/Planning 
Administrator, Taylor Stephens, GIS Analyst, and Tom Schingle, Fire Chief.  

2 Chairman Weber informed those present of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act and that a copy 
was located on the south wall of the Council Chambers. 

3 Acknowledgement of any changes in the agenda: None. 
4 Business not on the agenda: None. 
5 The minutes from the November 8,2021 meeting were reviewed. Conclusion: a motion was 

made by Wayman and seconded by Gompert to approve the minutes from November 8, 2021 
meeting. “Yeas” Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Gompert, Redfern “Absent”:  Chadwick, 
Zitterkopf, Huber, Westphal.  The motion carried. 

6 Chairman Weber opened the public hearing at 6:03 PM for Items 6A a zoning text change to 
Chapter 25 Article 3 regarding the addition of Vineyards & Wineries, Golf Courses, and 
Agricultural Attractions as principal permitted uses in the Agricultural Zoning District. Glaubius 
stated the applicant, Ryan Massey of Papa Moon Vineyards, received a cease letter from the city 
regarding holding events at the winery. Event venues is not a principal permitted use in the Ag 
District. Glaubius stated he and Massey met and came to an agreement to add vineyards & 
wineries as a principal permitted use in the Ag District. Glaubius stated city staff reviewed other 
Nebraska communities with vineyards & wineries, and concluded this was best route. Glaubius 
stated staff included golf courses and agricultural attractions to be added as principal permitted 
uses in the Ag District as well. Glaubius stated by adding these uses, it would clarify whether 
these are permitted uses or not. Glaubius stated city staff reviewed Lancaster County, 
Nebraska’s agricultural attraction use which includes pumpkin patches and corn mazes. Glaubius 
stated staff recommends a positive recommendation on the zoning text change by the Planning 
Commission to the City Council. Applicant Ryan Massey stated that when the winery began, he 
was informed that Papa Moon Vineyards was not within Scotts Bluff County’s zoning 
jurisdiction, however it has now come apparent that the winery is within the City of Scottsbluff’s 
zoning jurisdiction. Massey stated all inspections in the past were handled by the County and 
state and would like to have this use added to the Ag District. Weber closed the public hearing 
at 6:07 PM.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 4 / 153



 Conclusion: Motion by Wayman, seconded by Estrada to make a positive recommendation on 
the approval of the Zoning Text change regarding the addition of wineries & vineyards, golf 
courses, and agricultural attractions as principal permitted uses in the Agricultural Zoning 
District under Chapter 25 Article 3. Yeas”:  Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Gompert, Redfern 
“Nays” None “Abstained”: None, “Absent”:  Chadwick, Westphal, Zitterkopf, Huber.  The motion 
carried. 

8 Weber opened the public hearing at 6:08 PM for Item 6B regarding an ordinance text change 
regarding the addition of a definition to Chapter 25 Article 2 for Agricultural Attractions. 
Glaubius stated that staff proposed adding a definition for agricultural attractions. Glaubius read 
the definition of agricultural attractions, and stated it would help clarify any questions regarding 
the principal permitted use. Glaubius stated staff recommends a positive recommendation on 
the text change by the Planning Commission to the City Council. Weber closed the public 
hearing at 6:10 PM. Conclusion: Motion by Wayman, seconded by Aguallo to make a positive 
recommendation on the adoption of the zoning text change regarding a definition for 
agricultural attractions to City Council “Yeas”:  Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Redfern, 
Gompert “Nays” None “Abstained”: None, “Absent”:  Chadwick, Zitterkopf, Huber, Westphal.  
The motion carried. 

9 Weber opened the public hearing for Item 6C regarding a zoning text change to Chapter Article 
22 regarding buffer yard requirements at6:11PM. Glaubius stated Eric Reichert is requesting the 
text change for the buffer yard requirement as a property owned by Reichert at the northeast 
corner of Avenue I and 27th Street is narrower than most lots on 27th Street, and the existing 20’ 
buffer yard requirement would reduce the size of the off-street parking area. Glaubius stated 
that the buffer yard is required as Reichert’s property is zoned C-2 while the adjacent property is 
zoned R-1A. Glaubius stated there were no exceptions to this requirement. Glaubius stated he 
had reviewed the buffer yard requirements of both the City of Gering and the City of 
Scottsbluff’s Gateway Green Overlay Zone, and found both provided exceptions to this 
requirement which he found to be reasonable. Glaubius stated the City of Gering does not 
require a buffer yard if a street separates two zoning districts, and that the GG-O permits a 10’ 
buffer yard with the installation of a 6’ opaque fence. Applicant Erich Reichert stated he was 
pursuing the ordinance text change as he would like to move his proposed building into the 
required buffer yard in order to meet the off-street parking requirements of a gas station and 
restaurant. Reichert stated without the zoning text change, he would only be able to install the 
gas station and not the restaurant. Glaubius informed the Planning Commission that this zoning 
text change is citywide and not specifically for Reichert’s property, and that staff recommends a 
positive recommendation by the Planning Commission on the proposed text change. Weber 
closed the public hearing at 6:14 PM. Weber asked if the Planning Commission members had 
any additional questions. Redfern asked Reichert if a fence would be installed along the alley. 
Reichert stated a fence would not be installed as his business needs access to the alley. Weber 
asked Glaubius if all alleys in the City of Scottsbluff are the same width. Glaubius stated that 
alleys should be consistent throughout the city, and that the wording of the text change 
excludes private alleys. Weber asked if the exceptions listed in the text change apply regardless 
of the zoning districts. Glaubius stated the buffer yard requirement comes into effect whenever 
two different zoning districts abut. Glaubius stated that the Municipal Code lists the different 
intensities. Wayman asked if the text change would repeal the existing buffer yard 
requirements. Glaubius stated the existing 20’ buffer yard requirement will remain, and the text 
change will add two exceptions. Redfern stated that the text change would not affect any 
existing buffer yards as they are grandfathered, and Glaubius concurred. Reichert informed the 
Planning Commission that his business will still be required to follow the landscaped area 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 5 / 153



requirements. Gompert asked Chief Schingle if the Fire Department supported the zoning text 
change, and Schingle stated the Fire Department does support the change. Conclusion: Motion 
by Wayman, seconded by Aguallo to make a positive recommendation on the buffer yard text 
change to City Council. Yeas”:  Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Gompert, Redfern “Nays” 
None “Abstained”: None, “Absent”:  Chadwick, Westphal, Zitterkopf, Huber.   

10 Weber opened the public hearing for Item 6D regarding zoning text change to Chapter 4 Article 
1 regarding the inclusion of Section 107 of the 2018 International Building Code to the Municipal 
Code at 6:20 PM. Glaubius stated that Code Administrator II Gary Batt found an oversight in the 
adoption of the 2018 International Building Code into the Municipal Code. Glaubius stated that 
Section 107 was listed as one of the excluded sections in the Municipal Code. Glaubius stated 
that Section 107 allows the city code administrators to require a registered design official 
prepare construction documents when a construction project has special conditions. Glaubius 
stated that the city has been enforcing Section 107 although the Municipal Code excluded it.  
Weber closed the public hearing at 6:21 PM. Weber asked Glaubius if the zoning text change 
was to make the requirement legal since the city had been incorrectly enforcing it. Glaubius 
concurred.    Conclusion: Motion by Estrada, seconded by Wayman to make a positive 
recommendation on the zoning text change regarding Section 107 to the City Council. Yeas”:  
Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Redfern, Gompert “Nays” None “Abstained”: None, 
“Absent”:  Chadwick, Huber, Westphal, Zitterkopf    

11 Weber opened the public hearing for Item 6E regarding a preliminary plat for the Five Oaks 
Subdivision at 6:22 PM. Glaubius informed the Planning Commission that the preliminary plat is 
nearly identical with the exception of the three originally planned commercial lots along 
Highway 71 are consolidated into two multiple family dwelling lots. Glaubius stated all 
applicable city departments have reviewed the preliminary plat. Glaubius stated that since Block 
7 of the preliminary plat exceeds the maximum block length of 1,320 feet, they are required to 
dedicate a 20’ utility easement and 10’ crosswalk per Code 21-1-22. Bill Trumbull of C&T 
Holdings partnership which owns the land spoke to the Planning Commission. Trumbull stated 
the reason for the new preliminary plat is due to the previous preliminary plat expiring. 
Trumbull stated there is an interested party looking to purchase Block 7 for multiple family 
dwelling. Weber closed the public hearing at 6:25 PM. Glaubius informed the Planning 
Commission that a positive recommendation by the commission would need to be conditional 
on the approval of the crosswalk and utility easement by City Council. Conclusion: Motion by 
Estrada, seconded by Wayman to make a positive recommendation on the preliminary plat of 
Five Oaks conditional on City Council’s approval of the crosswalk and utility easement. Yeas”:  
Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Redfern, Gompert “Nays” None “Abstained”: None, 
“Absent”:  Chadwick, Huber, Westphal, Zitterkopf    

12 Weber opened the public hearing for Item 6F regarding a rezone of Lot 2A, Block 8, East Portal 
Addition from C-3 Heavy Commercial to R-4 Heavy Density Multiple Family Residential at 6:26 
PM. Glaubius stated the property is owned by Dick Meyer, and Meyer is seeking a rezone in 
order to building a multiple family dwelling complex on the lot. Glaubius stated the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map identifies the area as being residential. Glaubius 
stated staff recommends a positive recommendation by the Planning Commission to City 
Council on the approval of the rezone request. Weber closed the public hearing at 6:28 PM. 
Redfern stated the property to be rezoned is essentially surrounded by residential zoning, and 
Glaubius confirmed. Glaubius stated a sign was posted on the property and letters were sent to 
all property owners within 300 feet. Glaubius stated he did receive some calls from neighbors, 
and they did not have an issue with the rezone. Conclusion: Motion by Estrada, seconded by 
Gompert to make a positive recommendation on the rezone of Lot 2A, Block 8, East Portal 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 6 / 153



Addition from C-3 to R-4 the City Council. Yeas”:  Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Redfern, 
Gompert “Nays” None “Abstained”: None, “Absent”:  Chadwick, Huber, Westphal, Zitterkopf    

13 Weber opened the public hearing for 6G regarding a zoning text change to Chapter 25 Article 2 
regarding the repeal of the Gateway Green Overlay Zone (GG-O) at 6:29 PM. Glaubius explained 
that the GG-O zone is a 2,000-foot area along Highway 26, Highway 71, Highland Road, Highway 
79-G, and portions of Avenue I and Broadway. Glaubius provided the Planning Commission with 
the purpose of the GG-O as listed in the Municipal Code, and reminded the Planning 
Commission that they recently reviewed and approved the site plan for the Tidal Wave Car 
Wash as it to be located in the GG-O. Glaubius stated the GG-O is focused on landscape design 
standards, which can also be found in Chapter 25 Articles 5, 6, and 22. Glaubius stated that staff 
was bringing forward the repeal of the GG-O as developers have balked at the requirements of 
the GG-O due to the perception of additional requirements and associated increased costs. 
Glaubius stated he reviewed the GG-O to identify how it is different compared to the City’s 
Parking, Sign, and Landscaping Codes. Glaubius stated he found 17 aspects in the 7 pages of the 
GG-O requirements which could not be found elsewhere in Chapter 25. Glaubius stated he has 
consulted with the code administrators, economic development director, stormwater division, 
city attorney, and the city manager. Glaubius discussed the supplemental report on the GG-O. 
Glaubius stated the majority of the GG-O requirements can be found elsewhere in the code, and 
that staff is recommending a positive recommendation on the repeal of the GG-O by the 
Planning Commission to the City Council. Glaubius stated some of the requirements are 
counterintuitive, slows development along the corridor, and is a burden for staff to review and 
enforce. Bill Trumbull thanked staff for reviewing the GG-O as parts of the code are 
discombobulated, and working on making the code easier for developers to understand and 
staff to enforce. Eric Reichert concurred. Weber closed the public hearing at 6:37 PM. Redfern 
stated she was on City Council when the GG-O was passed, and one reason for its approval was 
the existing landscaping ordinance was not adequate. Redfern stated the city was concerned 
about the entrances of the city, especially when Walmart relocated to Avenue I and has a large 
parking lot with no landscaping. Redfern also stated there was safety considerations regarding 
parking lots that the GG-O addressed. Redfern asked Glaubius and the Commission if the 
landscaping code is strong enough to maintain the standards set by the GG-O. Glaubius stated 
for the most part the landscaping code is, and some aspects of the GG-O will be incorporated 
into the landscaping code at a later date. Glaubius stated the off-street parking code has 
requirements on parking lot island landscaping. Redfern stated part of the original intent of the 
GG-O was to have all the landscaping, off-street parking, and sign code in one spot. Trumbull 
concurred, but added that the code has gradually changed. Redfern concurred and stated with 
the staff turnover and new city councilmembers has disrupted the continuity. Redfern stated 
she believes it is still the City’s intention to have an aesthetically pleasing community. Glaubius 
stated that the GG-O has text requiring it to be used in conjunction with the landscaping code, 
and a significant amount of GG-O text is verbatim to the landscaping code. Wayman inquired if 
developers would still be able to pursue a variance if the GG-O was repealed. Glaubius stated 
the main means of pursuing a variance would not be changed. Wayman stated that the repeal of 
the GG-O would remove the additional step of Planning Commission approval of site plans. 
Glaubius concurred and stated that Tidal Wave Car Wash may have started construction had 
they not been required to wait for Planning Commission approval. Wayman stated that the GG-
O does not permit gravel parking lots, and asked if staff would look more into the off-street 
parking surface requirements of the city. Glaubius stated that staff can review to see whether 
gravel parking lots could rather be limited to specific zoning districts rather than be permitted 
everywhere in the city except the GG-O. Weber stated that the Planning Commission was shown 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 7 / 153



pictures of other community entrances when the GG-O was proposed for adoption. Weber 
stated that the Planning Commission obviously wanted an attractive city entrance, and a 
balance needs to be found between having an attractive community and not burdening 
developers. Weber stated the GG-O was to cover the first impressions of the city while the 
landscaping code was to cover the rest of the city. Weber asked if the GG-O repeal would limit 
enforcement in the future, and if the Planning Commission should rather amend the GG-O. 
Weber stated he believes the intent to have attractive looking entrances to the city still exist, 
and perhaps the GG-O was the first attempt to do this. Weber suggested the landscaping, off-
street parking, and sign code be revised prior to the repeal of the GG-O. Weber asked Reichert 
and Trumbull how they would like to see the code from the developer’s side. Reichert stated as 
a developer, the simpler the code the better. Reichert stated it is challenging to interpret which 
parts of the code overrides another such as buffer yard requirements versus off-street parking 
stall requirements. Trumbull stated the GG-O covers a lot of things that are also covered in 
other areas of codes. Trumbull stated it is difficult to ensure all requirements are being met in 
both the GG-O and the respective other codes. Trumbull stated that with the GG-O being so 
broad currently, it is easy for both the city and the developer to miss something. Trumbull 
stated this leads to uncomfortable situation where the city must determine whether to penalize 
a developer or accept the oversight. Trumbull stated that if the requirements are in the 
intended sections such as landscaping requirements being only in the landscaping code, then it 
is easier for interpretation. Trumbull stated the GG-O was thoughtfully thought out when it was 
originally approved, but since then other parts of the code have been improved and now there 
are duplications in the GG-O. Trumbull stated that large developers are used to a streamlined 
simple formula compared to scattered requirements. Aguallo inquired to Glaubius that staff’s 
intent is to repeal the GG-O, maintain the GG-Os expectations into other sections of the zoning 
code, and eliminate doublespeak. Glaubius concurred and stated this expectation would be 
moved to the landscaping code, sign code, and off-street parking code. Redfern suggested the 
Planning Commission and staff review the other applicable sections of the code prior to outright 
repealing the GG-O. Redfern stated that once the landscaping, off-street parking, and sign codes 
have been enhanced, the GG-O could be considered unnecessary and be repealed. Glaubius 
reviewed the supplement report again with the Planning Commission and inquired which 
aspects would the Planning Commission like to retain. Wayman stated that he understands the 
desire for a good-looking community, but the GG-O seems like another barrier for growth, and 
Aguallo agreed. Wayman used the example of Reichert’s fuel station freestanding sign height at 
Highway 26 and E. Overland Drive. Wayman stated the Planning Commission had to determine 
whether the sign needed to meet the sign code requirements or the GG-O requirements. 
Reichert concurred that it was difficult to interpret. Wayman stated he felt that a change to the 
GG-O needs to happen sooner than later in case it deters potential development. Redfern stated 
that some of the listed aspects on the supplemental report should not be considered barriers 
such as screening dumpsters. Wayman and Redfern agreed that most business already want to 
do this. Redfern stated that most of the aspects of the supplemental report should be 
incorporated into other parts of the code prior to the repeal of the GG-O. Glaubius reviewed the 
supplemental report again. Glaubius stated the having landscaping requirements for an entire 
lot is not reasonable citywide. Glaubius stated that the requirement to bury overhead 
powerlines is not reasonable either and is one that developers baulk at due to the high cost of 
burying powerlines. Glaubius stated the requirement of having parking behind or between 
buildings has a good intent, however the wording is inadequate. Glaubius stated that this could 
be incorporated into the off-street parking code, however questioned whether this requirement 
should remain. Glaubius used the example of Menards as this requirement would have led to 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 8 / 153



the back of the building facing Highway 26. Glaubius stated the xeriscaping section of the GG-O 
is only a suggestion, and there is no ability to enforce it. Glaubius stated the xeriscaping 
suggestion would be more effective as a brochure or handout instead of being in the municipal 
code. Glaubius stated the GG-O screening standards could be easily incorporated into the 
existing screen standards of the landscaping code. Glaubius stated that some of the wording of 
the GG-O is illogical for example the requirement of grease containers to be no more than 20’ 
feet from residential zoning districts. Glaubius stated the landscaping screen standards are 
stricter than some of the GG-O screening requirements. Glaubius stated the requirement to 
screen rooftop equipment and equipment from sidewalks is desirable, but questioned whether 
the city needed to have this requirement since most developers already do this. Glaubius stated 
the complete prohibition of outdoor storage could not be applied citywide. Glaubius stated the 
GG-O buffer yard requirement had been incorporated into the landscaping code tonight. 
Glaubius stated the requirement of shrubs to be planted within 10’ of the primary structure 
foundation at a density that will obscure 60% of the building foundation after 5 years except 
sides and rear if used for service/loading was an asinine requirement, and impractical for the 
city to enforce. Glaubius stated the planting layout requirements have a good intent, but places 
a large burden on staff to ensure the requirements are being met. Glaubius stated the 
landscaping code already has requirements on the layout of trees. Glaubius stated the size 
requirements for perennials and ornamental grasses should be incorporated into the 
landscaping code as tree and shrub minimum sizes are already defined there. Glaubius stated 
the paved off-street parking can be added to the off-street parking code. Glaubius stated he 
spoke with Stormwater Specialist Leann Sato regarding the stormwater retention landscaping 
requirement, and this may be better placed in the stormwater chapter of the municipal code. 
Glaubius stated the 3% impact fee if landscaping cannot be provided in the GG-O has not been 
enforced, and the Finance Department was not aware of this. Glaubius stated the necessity of 
Planning Commission site plan approval could be eliminated as staff already reviews the site 
plan. Trumbull inquired whether a public hearing would be necessary if sections of the code 
were changed. Glaubius stated public hearings would be required, but the changes could be 
consolidated into fewer ordinances. Weber stated it was the intent of staff to repeal the GG-O, 
however he would like to have the Planning Commission to further review the GG-O prior to 
taking action. Weber stated he wanted to consider keeping the GG-O in order to maintain 
attractive entrances to the city. Weber stated he would like to have staff and the Planning 
Commission explore this more at the January meeting. Conclusion: Motion by Estrada, seconded 
by Wayman to table the repeal of the Gateway Green Overlay Zone. Yeas”:  Wayman, Estrada, 
Weber, Aguallo, Redfern, Gompert “Nays” None “Abstained”: None, “Absent”:  Chadwick, 
Huber, Westphal, Zitterkopf    

14 Item 7: Glaubius reported in staff reports about the upcoming Panhandle Planning Workshop on 
January 25, 2022, and the Planning Commission is invited to attend. 

 Item 8: No Other Business 
15 Weber introduced Item 9 regarding scheduling the next Planning Commission meeting on 

January 10, 2022. 
16 Adjournment: Motion by Estrada, seconded by Zitterkopf to adjourn the meeting at 7:09 PM. 

Yeas”:  Wayman, Estrada, Weber, Aguallo, Redfern, Gompert “Nays” None “Abstained”: None, 
“Absent”:  Chadwick, Huber, Westphal, Zitterkopf    

 
 
_______________________. 
Chairman Dana Weber 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 9 / 153



 
 
______________________- 
Zachary Glaubius, Secretary 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 10 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item New Bus1

Public Hearing - Final Plat
Final Plat of Block 7, Five Oaks Subdivision situated in the Northwest Quarter of Section 14, Township 
22 North, Range 55 West of the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska.

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 11 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 12 / 153



City of Scottsbluff Planning Commission    

Development Services Staff Report – Zachary Glaubius 

Prepared on: January 3, 2022  For Hearing of: January 10, 2022 
 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
A. Applicant: C & T Holdings LLC/ Baker and Associates 

120 E 16th Street Suite A 
Scottsbluff, NE 69361 

 
B. Property 

Owner:  C & T Holdings LLC 
  1310 Circle Drive 
  Scottsbluff, NE 69361 

 
C. Proposal: Final Plat of Block 7 of the Five Oaks Subdivision 
 
D. Legal Description: A Tract of Land located in the northwest corner of Section 14, Township 

22North, Range 55 West of the 6th P.M. in Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska.  
 

E. Location: Approximately 10.820 acres along the east side of Highway 71 between the Scottsbluff 
Drain and the future W. 40th Street. 

 
F. Existing Zoning & Land Use: Ag – Agricultural 

 
G. Size of Site: Approximately 21.89 Acres 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
A. General Neighborhood/Area Land Uses and Zoning: 

Direction From 
Subject Site 

Future Land Use 
Designation 

Current Zoning 
Designation 

Surrounding 
Development 

North Northwest 
Commercial 

C-2 Neighborhood & 
Retail Commercial 

Vacant Lot, ELITE 
Health 

East Residential A-Agricultural Farmland 
South Highway 26 

Commercial  
C-2 Neighborhood & 
Retail Commercial 

Vacant Lots, Chili’s 
Restaurant 

West Residential R-1A Single Family 
Residential 

Single-Family 
Dwellings 

 
B. Relevant Case History 

1. Preliminary Plat for this Parcel was approved on December 13, 2021 by the Planning 
Commission 

2. Preliminary Plat for this subdivision was approved at the January 3, 2022 City Council 
Meeting.   
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 13 / 153



III. ANALYSIS 
A. Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan currently shows the 

site as Residential 
B. Traffic & Access:  

1. Access to Block 7 will be via the extended W. 40th Street and permitted access along 
Nebraska State Highway 71 near the Scottsbluff Drain.  

2. A 10’ crosswalk will be dedicated to public use along the southern property line.  
C. Utilities: 

1. The existing City of Scottsbluff Sewer Easement will become a Utility Easement along 
southern property line. 

2. A 20’ utility easement is proposed along the east border of Block 7. 
3. A 30’ utility easement loop is proposed in Block 7.  

 
IV. STAFF COMMENTS 

A. This final plat is only for Block 7. The preliminary plat approved at the December 13, 2021 
included other blocks of the Five Oaks Subdivision.  

B. The distance along Highway 71 between W. 36th Street and W. 40th Street exceeds the maximum 
block length of 1,320 feet per 21-1-22. However, City Council can approve exceptions with the 
dedication of a 10’ crosswalk that extends across the block, and a 20’ utility easement that 
extends across the Block. 

C. Staff finds justification for an exception of the maximum block length given Highway 71 is a 
limited access roadway. Staff and applicant have agreed to the dedication of a 10’ crosswalk 
along the south property line and the conversion of the existing sewer easement to a utility 
easement to meet the requirements of 21-1-22.  

D. The City Council approved the location of the crosswalk and utility easement at the January 3, 
2022 meeting.  
 

V. FINDINGS OF FACT 
A. Findings of Fact to Recommend Its Approval May Include: 

1. The Comprehensive Plan identifies the area as residential  
2. The proposed crosswalk dedication and utility easement will satisfy the requirements of 

21-1-22 regarding block length.  
3. City Council approved the location of the crosswalk and utility easement.  

 
B. Findings of Fact to Not Recommend Approval May Include:  

1.  None   
 

VI. STAFF RECCOMENDATION 
A. Staff recommends Planning Commission recommend the approval of the Final Plat of Block 7, 

Five Oaks subdivision for approval by the City Council.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 14 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 15 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 16 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 17 / 153



Bureau of Land
Management, Nebraska
Game & Parks Commission,
Esri Canada, Esri, HERE,
Garmin, INCREMENT P,
USGS, EPA, USDA, Bureau
of Land Management,
Nebraska Game & Parks
Commission, Esri Canada,

Proposed Changes

Street Centerlines
CLASS

Highway

Main Road

Residential/Rural

Planning Commission Aerial
Overview

A
SP

EN
D

R

W 38TH ST
FI

V
E 

O
A

KS
 D

R

M
U

LB
ER

RY
D

R

W ADLER DR

SAGEBRUSH DR

W 40TH ST

M
A

PL
E 

D
R

BL
U

ES
TE

M
 D

R

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
1

Five Oaks Subdivision Preliminary Plat Parcel: 010027793

Taylor Stephens
City of Scottsbluff GIS

Created on December 9th, 2021
Coordinate System:

NAD 1983 State Plane Nebraska FIPS 2600 Feet
Lambert Conformal Conic

The City makes no representation or warranty
as to the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness,

and in particular, its accuracy in labeling or
displaying dimensions, contours, property

boundaries, or placement or location of any
map features thereon.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 18 / 153



C-2
C-2

O&P

R-1A

R-4

C-3

A

R-4

R-1A

R-1A

R-1A

O&P

A
SP

EN
D

R

W 38TH ST

FI
V

E 
O

A
KS

 D
R

W ADLER DR

SAGEBRUSH DR

W 40TH ST

M
A

PL
E 

D
R

BL
U

ES
TE

M
 D

R

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
1

Proposed Changes

Parcel Boundaries

Zoning
A

AR

C-1

C-2

C-3

M-1

M-2

O&P

PBC

R-1

R-1A

R-1B

R-4

R-6

GEODATA.GISMGR.Corporate_Limits

GEODATA.GISMGR.Extended_Jurisdiction

Street Centerlines
CLASS

Highway

Main Road

Residential/Rural

Planning Commission Zoning
OverviewFive Oaks Subdivision Preliminary Plat Parcel: 010027793

Taylor Stephens
City of Scottsbluff GIS

Created on December 9th, 2021
Coordinate System:

NAD 1983 State Plane Nebraska FIPS 2600 Feet
Lambert Conformal Conic

The City makes no representation or warranty
as to the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness,

and in particular, its accuracy in labeling or
displaying dimensions, contours, property

boundaries, or placement or location of any
map features thereon.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 19 / 153



Bureau of Land
Management,
Nebraska Game &

Highway_26_Comm

NW_Comm

Residential

NW_Comm

Ave_B_Hospital

Highway_26_Comm

Residential

A
SP

EN
D

R

W 38TH ST

FI
V

E 
O

A
KS

 D
R

W ADLER DR

SAGEBRUSH DR

W 40TH ST

M
A

PL
E 

D
R

BL
U

ES
TE

M
 D

R

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
1

Proposed Changes

2016 Comp. Plan Land Use
Automobile Commercial

Avenue B and Hospial Campus

Central Business District

East Overland

Highway 26 Commercial

Northwest Commercial

Residential

Rural

Rural Residential

Southeast Industrial and Commercial

South Broadway

WNCC and Surrouding Area

Street Centerlines
CLASS

Highway

Main Road

Residential/Rural

Taylor Stephens
City of Scottsbluff GIS

Created on December 9th, 2021
Coordinate System:

NAD 1983 State Plane Nebraska FIPS 2600 Feet
Lambert Conformal Conic

The City makes no representation or warranty
as to the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness,

and in particular, its accuracy in labeling or
displaying dimensions, contours, property

boundaries, or placement or location of any
map features thereon.

Planning Commission
Five Oaks Subdivision Preliminary Plat Parcel: 010027793

2016 Comp. Plan
Future Land Use Overview

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 20 / 153



Five Oaks Subdivision Preliminary Plat Parcel: 010027793

Proposed Changes

Building

Parcel Boundaries

Street Centerlines
CLASS

Highway

Main Road

Residential/Rural

Planning Commission Parcels and Buildings
Overview

3618
MAPLE DR

3614 MAPLE DR

913 W
ADLER DR 5 BLUESTEM DR

3624 MAPLE DR
6 BLUESTEM DR

3621 MAPLE DR

19 BLUESTEM DR

11 BLUESTEM DR

921 W 36TH ST

3614 ASPEN DR

7 BLUESTEM DR3622 MAPLE DR

22 BLUESTEM DR

8 BLUESTEM DR3620 MAPLE DR

21 BLUESTEM DR

9 BLUESTEM DR

3618 AVE I

20 BLUESTEM DR
10 BLUESTEM DR

18 BLUESTEM DR

12 BLUESTEM DR

3613 MAPLE DR 13 BLUESTEM DR
3612 MAPLE DR

3612 ASPEN DR 14 BLUESTEM DR17 BLUESTEM DR

3601 AVE I

3719 FIVE
OAKS DR

3723 FIVE
OAKS DR

606 W 38TH ST

605
SAGEBRUSH DR

3724 ASPEN DR
602 W 38TH ST

3613 FIVE
OAKS DR

3621 FIVE
OAKS DR

3619 FIVE
OAKS DR

3617 FIVE
OAKS DR

3615 FIVE
OAKS DR

3620 ASPEN DR

3616 ASPEN DR

597
SAGEBRUSH DR

603
SAGEBRUSH DR

505 W 38TH ST

3802
MULBERRY DR

511 W 38TH ST

501 W 38TH ST

416 W 40TH ST

3710 AVE I
3619 MAPLE DR

3615 MAPLE DR

0

502-3723
W 38TH ST
ASPEN DR

3801-609
FIVE OAKS DR
W 38TH ST

3724 FIVE
OAKS DR

3622 FIVE
OAKS DR

3618 FIVE
OAKS DR

3616 FIVE
OAKS DR

3614 FIVE
OAKS DR

3612 FIVE
OAKS DR

0

3715 ASPEN DR

A
SP

EN
D

R

W 38TH ST
FI

V
E

O
A

KS
D

R

M
U

LB
ER

RY
D

R

W ADLER DR

SAGEBRUSH DR

W 40TH ST

M
A

PL
E 

D
R

BLUESTEM DR

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
1

Taylor Stephens
City of Scottsbluff GIS

Created on December 9th, 2021
Coordinate System:

NAD 1983 State Plane Nebraska FIPS 2600 Feet
Lambert Conformal Conic

The City makes no representation or warranty
as to the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness,

and in particular, its accuracy in labeling or
displaying dimensions, contours, property

boundaries, or placement or location of any
map features thereon.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 21 / 153



Proposed Changes

Easement

Water Curbstop

Water Valve

Water Manhole

Fire Hydrants

Water Lines

! Verified_Manhole

Wastewater Lines

Outfall

Stormwater Inlet

Stormwater Manhole

Stormwater Arc

Street Centerlines
CLASS

Highway

Main Road

Residential/Rural

Planning Commission Utilities
Overview

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

A
SP

EN
D

R

W 38TH ST
FI

V
E 

O
A

KS
 D

R

M
U

LB
ER

RY
D

R

W ADLER DR

SAGEBRUSH DR

W 40TH ST

M
A

PL
E 

D
R

BL
U

ES
TE

M
 D

R

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
1

Bureau of Land Management, Nebraska Game & Parks Commission, Esri Canada,
Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, USGS, EPA, USDA

Five Oaks Subdivision Preliminary Plat Parcel: 010027793

Taylor Stephens
City of Scottsbluff GIS

Created on December 9th, 2021
Coordinate System:

NAD 1983 State Plane Nebraska FIPS 2600 Feet
Lambert Conformal Conic

The City makes no representation or warranty
as to the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness,

and in particular, its accuracy in labeling or
displaying dimensions, contours, property

boundaries, or placement or location of any
map features thereon.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 22 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item New Bus2

Public Hearing - Rezone
Rezone of Lot 3, Block 1, Sunset Addition from C-3 Heavy Commercial to R-1A Single-Family 
Residential Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change.

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 23 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 24 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 25 / 153



City of Scottsbluff Planning Commission    

Development Services Staff Report – Zachary Glaubius 

Prepared on: January 3, 2022   For Hearing of: January 10, 2022 
 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
A. Applicant: Michael Dirks 

210 W. 15th Street 
Scottsbluff, NE 69361 

 
B. Property 

Owner:  Same as Applicant 
   

 
C. Proposal: Request to rezone Lot 3, Block 1, Sunset Addition to R-1A Single Family Residential 

from C-3 Heavy Commercial  
 

D. Legal Description: Lot 3, Block 1, Sunset Addition 
 
 

E. Location: 210 W. 15th Street 
 

F. Existing Zoning & Land Use: C-3 Heavy Commercial 

 
G. Size of Site: Approximately 7,000 square feet 

 
II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

A. General Neighborhood/Area Land Uses and Zoning: 
Direction From 

Subject Site 
Future Land Use 

Designation 
Current Zoning 

Designation 
Surrounding 
Development 

North Residential C-3 Heavy 
Commercial 

Kelley Bean Co. 

East Residential C-3 Heavy 
Commercial 

Commercial Building 

South Residential  C-3 Heavy 
Commercial 

Commercial Building  

West Residential R-1A Single Family Single-Family 
Dwellings 

 
B. Relevant Case History 

1. N.A. 
III. ANALYSIS 

A. Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan currently shows the 
site as Residential. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 26 / 153



B. Traffic & Access:  
1. Current access to Lot 3 is via W. 15th Street.  
2. An alley is located along the south property line.  

C.  Utilities: 
1. Lot 3 has access to Water, Wastewater, and Stormwater lines under W. 15th Street.  

 
IV. STAFF COMMENTS 

A. The rezone is aligned with the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map.  
B. The proposed rezone to R-1A is not a spot zone as the lot to the west of Lot 3 is zoned R-1A.  
C. The property has been used as a single-family dwelling for the known past.  
D. The property has been zoned C-3 since before 1 

 
V. FINDINGS OF FACT 

A. Findings of Fact to Recommend Its Approval May Include: 
1. The Comprehensive Plan identifies the area as residential and the rezone will permit 

residential development.  
2. The rezone is not a spot zone. 

B. Findings of Fact to Not Recommend Approval May Include:  
1.  None   

 
VI. STAFF RECCOMENDATION 

A. Staff recommends the Planning Commission make a positive recommendation to City Council to 
approve the rezone of Lot 3, Block 1, Sunset Addition from C-3 Heavy Commercial to R-1A single 
family residential.    

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 27 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 28 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 29 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 30 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 31 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 32 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 33 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item New Bus3

Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change
Zoning Text Change to Chapter 25 Article 2 regarding the Gateway Green Overlay Zone.

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 34 / 153



City of Scottsbluff Planning Commission    

Development Services Staff Report – Zachary Glaubius 

Prepared on: January 3, 2022  For Hearing of: January 10, 2022 
 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. At the December 13, 2021 regular Planning Commission meeting, the P.C. reviewed and 

discussed staff’s proposal to repeal the Gateway Green Overlay Zone. 

B. The P.C. tabled the proposal to further review the implications of repealing the GG-O and to 

update the landscaping, off-street parking, and sign codes to include desired aspects of the 

GG-O prior to a repeal. 

 

 

II. STAFF COMMENTS 

A. History of the GG-O – See packet for copies of ordinances.  

a. First passed in 2005 (Ordinance 3882) 

b. Revised in 2009 (Ordinance 3986) 

c. Revised in 2012 (Ordinance 4072) 

d. Revised in 2015 (Ordinance 4151) 

B. Extensive changes were made with the 2009 revision. The 2012 and 2015 revisions were 

relatively minor.  

C. Further review of the GG-O by staff shows the large majority of the GG-O is already 

incorporated elsewhere in the code or can be incorporated to other parts of the code.  

a. See packet  

D. The GG-O minimally deviates from the Landscaping Code. It should be noted the Landscaping 

Code encompasses the city’s entire jurisdiction.   

E. The GG-O has been found to be less restrictive in some instances than the Landscaping Code. 

F. The GG-O has been found to deter development along Highway 26 recently. This is due to: 

a. Increased review time as a result of the Planning Commission approval requirement. 

b. Perception of additional development requirements  

G. The GG-O is a burden on City staff. Some requirements found in it are impractical to enforce and 

time consuming to review. 

H. Staff requests additional time to draft the revised landscaping ordinance prior to the full repeal 

of the GG-O.  

 

III. STAFF RECCOMENDATION 

A. Staff recommends the Planning Commission table the repeal of the GG-O to further research 

and discussion regarding repealing of the GG-O and updating the landscaping code (Article 22) 

and off-street parking code (Article 5).   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 35 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 36 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 37 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 38 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 39 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 40 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 41 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 42 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 43 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 44 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 45 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 46 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 47 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 48 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 49 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 50 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 51 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 52 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 53 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 54 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 55 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 56 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 57 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 58 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 59 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 60 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 61 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 62 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 63 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 64 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 65 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 66 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 67 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 68 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 69 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 70 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 71 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 72 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 73 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 74 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 75 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 76 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 77 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 78 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 79 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 80 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 81 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 82 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 83 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 84 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 85 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 86 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 87 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 88 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 89 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 90 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 91 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 92 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 93 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 94 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 95 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 96 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 97 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 98 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 99 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 100 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 101 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 102 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 103 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 104 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 105 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 106 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 107 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 108 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 109 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 110 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 111 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 112 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 113 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 114 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 115 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 116 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 117 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 118 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 119 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 120 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 121 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 122 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 123 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 124 / 153



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 125 / 153



 

§ 25-3-22.1  GG-O GATEWAY GREEN OVERLAY. 

   (A)   Purpose. The Gateway Green Overlay (GG-O) District is intended to: 

      (1)   Promote the general health, safety, and welfare of the community; 

      (2)   Create a sense of continuity throughout the corridor with harmonious design 
standards for public improvements and private property development; and 

      (3)   Preserve and enhance the historical attractions and landmarks of the city and the 
surrounding area. 

   (B)   Design guidelines. The GG-O District is an overlay zone that supersedes those of any 
other zoning district to which a tract of land may be subject and shall be read together and 
incorporated in §§ 25-22-1 through 25-22-10 of this chapter, referred to as the 
“Landscaping Article”. All new development and redevelopment must conform to the 
design guidelines. All plans shall be reviewed and approved for design, landscaping, and 
architectural detail and compatibility. No design plans that have been approved by the 
Planning Commission may be altered without approval of the Planning Commission. 

   (C)   Boundaries. The GG-O District shall consist of all land located within 1,000 feet 
measured perpendicular from the right-of-way of the following transportation corridors: 

      (1)   U.S. Highway 26, extending from the east extraterritorial boundary to the west 
extraterritorial boundary; 

      (2)   Highland Road, extending from the intersection with Airport Road to the 
intersection with U.S. Highway 26; 

      (3)   McClellan Expressway (East Bypass Highway 71) from the North Platte River to its 
intersection with U.S. Highway 26; 

      (4)   Broadway Avenue from the North Platte River to its intersection with South 
Beltline Highway; 

      (5)   Avenue I from the North Platte River to its intersection with South Beltline 
Highway; 

      (6)   Highway 71 from the intersection with Highway 26 to the north extraterritorial 
boundary; and 

      (7)   Highway L-79-G (West 20th Street extended) from the west extraterritorial 
boundary to the west corporate limits of the city. 

   (D)   Development action. There shall be no development action within the GG-O District 
without permission of the Planning Commission. Any person or entity desiring a 
development action within the GG-O District must submit plans to the Planning 
Commission for review and approval. Recommend removal. This requirement adds a 
minimum of 4 weeks to review time. Average review time for a building permit is 2-3 
weeks.  

   (E)   Development standards. The development standards were formulated to create a 
visually pleasing GG-O District and to convey the values of the city. 

      (1)   Signs. 

         (a)   Monument signs. One ground sign, monument type with a maximum height of six 
feet shall be permitted on each lot. Total area of sign not to exceed 250 square feet. Sign 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 126 / 153



structure materials shall be comparable with materials used on the facade of the principal 
building.  

         (b)   Wall signs and marquee signs. One wall sign or marquee sign shall be permitted 
per building side. – Recommend move this to sign code  

         (c)   Pole signs. One 25-foot pole sign will be allowed in the GG-O District per 
development. - Recommend move this to sign code. Current regulations are signs can be no 
taller than max height in respective zoning district. Potentially a problem with M-1 as sign 
could be 70’ tall for example.  

         (d)   Other signs. Other signs may be permitted, in the sole discretion of the Planning 
and Development Director, if the sign is small in scale, is directional in nature and meets 
the intent of this section. – Recommend removal. This is covered in the sign code. 

      (2)   Lighting. Lighting on private property shall be in harmony with poles and lanterns 
within specified corridors. Lights shall provide safe and efficient lighting and be without 
glare for pedestrians and motorists passing by. All lighting shall be designed to avoid 
intrusion on adjacent properties and adjacent roads. – Recommend removal. Lighting 
regulations can be found under 25-5-14 for off-street parking.  

      (3)   Overhead lines. Eliminate the need for power cables by burying cables 
underground. Recommend removal. This requirement places large financial burden on 
developers. Additionally, any powerlines over Highway 26 would require State of Nebraska 
approval.  

      (4)   Parking lot design. 

         (a)   All parking areas shall be paved to meet current ordinance requirements, 
including those in §§ 25-22-1 through 25-22-10 in this chapter. 

         (b)   All developments shall have off-street parking. Recommend removal. This is 
redundant language.  

         (c)   Parking areas over 50 spaces shall include landscape islands. All landscape islands 
shall have a minimum of 100 square feet of open ground and at least 300 cubic foot of good 
soil rooting volume for each tree. One-half of all landscape islands must include a 
deciduous canopy tree. Understory plantings of shrubs/perennials/groundcover shall be 
durable and able to withstand foot traffic and frequent breakage from pedestrian traffic. 
Landscape islands shall be evenly distributed to the maximum extent possible. – 
Recommend removal of majority. Parking lot landscaping is covered under 25-22-8, which 
is stricter. 25-22-8 requires parking lots over 6,000 square feet to have landscaping. With 
the GG-O requirement, parking lots could be larger than 9,000 square feet before 
landscaping is required. For example, fifty 90-degree parking stalls (10’ x 18’) equals 9,000 
sq. ft. This calculation excludes the required minimum 26’ required maneuvering width 
(parking aisles). 25-22-8 also requires parking lot over 6,000 sq. ft. have no less than 5% of 
the total paved area as interior landscaped areas. Recommend the addition of the GG-O 
requirement for landscape islands to have a minimum area of 100 sq feet. 

         (d)   Parking areas should be placed between or behind buildings unless lot layout 
does not allow. If layout does not allow for parking between or behind buildings, then 
conceptual parking design may be approved by the Planning Commission. Recommend 
removal. This concept is acceptable in theory, but would not result in the desired outcome 
in practice.          (e)   All parking areas visible from the transportation corridors shall have a 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 127 / 153



complete visual buffer of four feet minimum height.– Recommend removal. This 
requirement contradicts with 25-22-8(E), which states required screening and landscaping 
shall not obstruct the view from the off-street parking facility to any driveway approach, 
street, alley or sidewalk. For locations with major on-site traffic circulation, the screening 
requirements of 25-22-7 would come into effect. 

         (f)   Where parking lots abut adjacent residential zoned areas, a buffer yard of 20 feet 
minimum is required.  Recommend removal. 25-22-8 (B) states each parking facility that 
abuts a residential district shall provide a 20-foot landscaped buffer along its common 
property line with the residential district. 25-22-8 (C) states a 4’ tall fence, wall, landscape 
screen, or earth berm shall be provided when a parking facility abuts a residential district. 
Additionally, the screening requirements of 25-22-7 would come into effect.  

      (5)   Landscaping and screening standards. Landscaping is critical in creating a visually 
pleasing appearance of the transportation corridors in the city. Landscape design and 
development shall be priority in the planning process. To the extent reasonably feasible, all 
landscape plans shall be designed to incorporate water conservation materials and 
techniques in order to comply with each of the xeriscape landscaping principles listed 
below. Xeriscape landscaping principles do not include or allow artificial turf or plants, 
mulched (including gravel) beds or areas without landscape plant material, paving of areas 
not required for walkways, plazas or parking lots, bare ground, weed covered or infested 
surfaces, or any landscaping that does not comply with the standards of this section. See 
Appendix A at the end of this section for recommended species. 

         (a)   Xeriscape landscaping principles are as follows: 

            1.   Design. Identify zones of different water requirements and group plants together 
that have similar water needs; 

            2.   Appropriate use of turf. Limit high-irrigation turf and plantings to appropriate 
high use areas with high visibility and functional needs; 

            3.   Low-water-using plants. Choose low-water-demanding plants and turf where 
practicable; 

            4.   Irrigation. Design, operate, and maintain an efficient irrigation system. Drip 
irrigation shall be used in all landscape beds. If sprinklers are used for turf, no water shall 
be sprayed over sidewalks, streets, or parking lots. Areas of low water use landscaping may 
be included but must be indicated on the plans. Irrigation water must be available for the 
initial two years after planting to establish low-water use landscapes; 

            5.   Soil preparation. Incorporate soil amendments before planting; 

            6.   Mulch. Add mulch to planting beds to a minimum depth of three inches around 
trees and shrubs and one-inch around perennials and ornamental grasses. Organic mulch is 
preferred.  

Rock mulch may be used only if pre-approved by the Planner; and 

            7.   Maintenance. Provide regular and attentive maintenance. 

Recommend rewording and placing under 25-22-5. For example, add a requirement for 
33% of plants be native species. Additionally, a xeriscaping program by the City could be 
implemented.  

         (b)   Screening. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 128 / 153



            1.   All loading and service areas that are within 50 feet of a side or rear lot line 
abutting property that is residentially zoned shall be surrounded by a six-foot high 
masonry wall or solid wood or PVC fence with opaque gate. –Recommend removal. 25-22-7 
is stricter as screening is required when similar conditions are visible from a street ROW or 
face a boundary of a less intensive zoning district.  Six-foot screen requirement is 
redundant as it can be found under 25-2-7 (B).  

            2.   Waste receptacles, including dumpsters, garbage cans, or grease containers shall 
be located in the rear or side yard of lot and no more than 20 feet from residentially zoned 
areas. All waste receptacles shall be screened from view from all property lines and public 
areas of the site by a minimum six-foot high evergreen planting, masonry wall, or wood or 
PVC fence. Recommend adding screening requirements for waste receptacles, including 
dumpsters, garbage cans, or grease containers to 25-22-7 (A). Recommend adding the 
requirement of such features to be located in the side or rear yard of a lot to 25-3-23.  

            3.   Rooftop mechanical equipment, including HVAC and utility equipment shall be 
screened from adjacent streets, sidewalks, residential, public, and institutional uses. 
Screening shall consist of parapet walls or an opaque enclosure around the equipment that 
is constructed of one of the materials used on the primary facade of the principal structure. 
Recommend adding screening requirements for rooftop mechanical and utility equipment 
to 25-22-7 (A).  

            4.   Ground or wall mounted mechanical equipment, such as HVAC equipment, 
transformers, generators, and gangs of multiple utility meters shall be screened from 
adjacent streets, sidewalks, residential, public, and institutional uses. Screening shall 
consist of evergreen planting, masonry wall, wood or PVC fencing, or other opaque 
enclosure around the equipment that is constructed of one of the permanent and durable 
materials used on the primary facade of the building. The height of the planting or fence 
shall be sufficient to effectively screen the equipment from view. –Recommend adding to 
25-22-7 (A). Listed screening requirements are redundant as they are listed under 25-22-7 
(B). 

            5.   Outdoor storage shall be prohibited. Recommend removal and potential 
incorporation into 25-4 as it is difficult to determine what is outdoor storage. In regards to 
shipping containers, building permits are required for shipping containers to stay on a site 
for more than 6 months. Additionally, 25-22-7 requires screening of outdoor storage areas.  

         (c)   Buffer yards. 

            1. Buffer yards are developed for the purpose of providing an effective visual screen 
between two dissimilar uses. Recommend removal as redundant. See 25-22-6. 

            2.   Buffer yards shall be required along and inside the property line of commercial 
property abutting a residentially zoned property. Recommend removal as redundant. See 
25-22-6. 

            3.   Buffer yards shall be 20 feet minimum in depth and shall meet the following 
criteria: be planted with a staggered double row of evergreen trees at least six feet in 
height, or be planted with a single row of deciduous shade trees two-inch caliper trunk 
minimum and two staggered rows of evergreen shrubs at least three feet in height, planted 
a maximum of four feet on center. Recommend removal as both redundant and overly 
specific for design layout. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 129 / 153



            4.   If a six-foot high solid wood or PVC fence or masonry wall is incorporated into the 
design, the buffer yard may be reduced by ten feet. Finished side of fencing will face 
abutting property. A row of evergreen trees at least six feet in height, or a single row of 
deciduous shade trees two inches caliper trunk minimum and a staggered row of evergreen 
shrubs at least three feet in height, planted a maximum of four feet on center must 
accompany the fence. – Planning Commission made positive recommendation on adding 
this caveat to 25-22-6 at the December 13, 2021 meeting.  

         (d)   Maintenance of buffer yard. The buffer yard shall be maintained so as to provide 
an effective visual screen. If plant material shall die or be removed such that the buffer yard 
no longer functions, the plant material shall be replaced by the property owner. 
Recommend removal as it is redundant. Maintenance requirements are listed under 25-22-
10 (B). 

         (e)   Landscaping. 

            1.   Building perimeter walls: shrubs shall be planted within ten feet of the 
foundation of the primary structure along each building facade at a density that will 
obscure 60% of the building foundation after five years, except for sides or rear of building 
used for loading or service area. Recommend removal as this requirement is impractical to 
enforce.  

            2.   Along each street frontage, there shall be, at a minimum, a ten-foot wide 
landscape strip, continuous along the frontage except for the perpendicular crossings for 
driveways and utilities. The landscape strip shall be planted with shade trees at a rate of 
one per 40 feet of linear frontage or evergreen trees at a rate of one per 20 feet of linear 
frontage. Evergreens may only be planted if planting bed is a minimum of 20 feet wide. 
Trees may be spread irregularly in informal groupings or be uniformly spaced, as 
consistent with large overall planting patterns and organization. Trees shall be spread a 
minimum of 15 feet apart for large shade trees and evergreens, and a minimum of ten feet 
apart for small ornamentals (list provides). Grouping of trees may be no more than 150 feet 
apart. The space between the trees should be planted and maintained to aid the health and 
growth of the trees. There must be a maintained, non-turf grass landscape bed under and 
around trees, to be a minimum of 40 square feet per large shade tree or evergreen and 30 
square feet per small or medium tree. The landscape zone must be planted to appropriate 
and compatible shrubs or herbaceous grasses or perennials to cover at least 50% of the 
bed. The remainder may be mulch. Organic mulch should be used if possible. Screen 
standards shall comply with §§ 25-22-7 and 25-22-8 of this chapter. Where overhead wires 
exist directly over tree planting area, small ornamental trees shall be substituted for 
required shade trees at an equal number.  Recommend removal of majority of 
requirements. The 10’ depth of landscaping is listed under 25-22-4. Recommend adding 
requirement for evergreen trees only to be planted in 20’ wide beds to 25-22-5. 25-3-25 
(E) prohibits the use of inorganic materials as a principal groundcover in landscaping areas 
along streets.  

            3.   Plant material, wall, or fencing in any required landscaped area shall not obstruct 
the view from the off-street parking facility to any driveway approach, street, alley, or 
sidewalk. Landscaping shall further not obstruct any views among parking spaces and 
circulation ways, or visibility between vehicles and pedestrians. Recommend removal as 
redundant. See 25-22-8 (E).  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 130 / 153



            4.   Stormwater retention ponds shall be landscaped and developed in such a way as 
to enhance or be in harmony with the surrounding site landscape.  

               a.   Retention basins should be “free form” following the natural contours of the 
land. If land lacks contour, the basins shall be created to look like a natural depression. Side 
slopes should vary to give the appearance of a natural condition. 

               b.   Trees and shrub groupings shall be planted intermittently along the ridge of the 
retention pond to create the appearance of the plants naturally occurring. 

               c.   Approved erosion control measures will be required on all slopes. Use of 
inorganic landscape materials is prohibited. No artificial trees, shrubs, plants, or turf shall 
be used to fulfill the minimum requirements for landscaping. Inorganic materials such as 
stone or decorative pavers, may be used provided that such material does not compromise 
more than 25% of the minimum required landscaped area. When calculating the area to 
determine how much inorganic material may be used, the area of driveways and walkways 
shall not be counted. Loose rock and cobblestones shall not be permitted within any 
required landscaped area which is within ten feet of a traveled street surface. Recommend 
removal. Recommend adding another subsection to the landscaping code to provide 
requirements for stormwater management landscaping. Stormwater Specialist Leann Sato 
has provided a preliminary subsection.  

            5.   Minimum tree and shrub sizes: 

               a.   All deciduous shade trees shall be a minimum one and one- half inch caliper 
measured 12 inches from above the root ball; 

               b.   All evergreen trees shall be a minimum five feet in height measured from the 
top of the root ball to the top of the tree; 

               c.   All ornamental deciduous trees shall be a minimum one and one-half inch 
caliper measured 12 inches from above the root ball; 

               d.   Shrubs shall be two gallon size or greater or 15 inches in height if balled or 
burlapped; and 

               e.   All perennials and ornamental grasses shall be one quart size or greater. – 
Recommend consolidation into 25-22-5. Uses GG-O minimum sizes instead of those listed 
currently under 25-22-5 as GG-O minimum sizes allow smaller plants to be installed. 
Smaller plants are typically more available and cost less. Add minimum size requirements 
for perennials and ornamental grasses to 25-22-5. 

            6.   Upon installation of required landscape materials, each owner shall take 
appropriate actions to ensure their continued health and maintenance. Required 
landscaping that does not remain healthy shall be replaced consistently with this section 
and the approved landscaping plan for the project. Recommend removal. See 25-22-10 

      (6)   Minimum species diversity. To prevent uniform insect or disease susceptibility and 
eventual uniform senescence on a development site or in the adjacent area or the district, 
species diversity is required and expansive monocultures are prohibited. The following 
minimum requirements shall apply to any development plan. Recommend adding diversity 
requirements to 25-22-5. 

  

Number of Trees on Site Maximum Percentage of One Species 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 131 / 153



10-19 33% 

30-39 25% 

40 or more 15% 

  

      (7)   Use of approved species. Regionally native plants should be used when possible to 
help aid biodiversity and convey a sense of place with the natural context of our 
community. Ninety percent of all required trees planted must be from the approved list 
provided in Appendix A of this section.  Recommend removal. See 25-22-5 (A). Recommend 
using approved GG-O plant list as part of a new Official Plant List of recommended and 
prohibited plants. Staff intends to work with the Park, Tree, and Cemetery Board to create a 
new plant list.  

      (8)   Redevelopment. In the event any property owner or occupant owning or 
possessing property located within the GG-O Overlay District commences a remodel or 
redevelopment project, the cost of which exceeds $100,000 based upon the building permit 
issued by the city’s Planning and Development Department, upon property that does not 
then meet the requirements of this section, then the property owner or occupant will be 
required to spend 3% of any remodel or redevelopment project toward bringing the 
property and landscaping up to the development standards in this section. Once the 
property and landscaping meet the requirements of this section, the property owner or 
occupant will no longer have to spend a portion of the remodel or redevelopment project to 
make improvements in order to comply with this section. In addition, if the property owner 
or occupant is able to show they are unable to bring the property into compliance because 
of the property’s topography or features, then the property owner or occupant may appear 
before the city’s Planning Commission to explain why they cannot comply. If the Planning 
Commission finds the property owner or occupants are unable to comply with the 
requirements of this section for the reasons stated above, then it may excuse the property 
owner or occupant from attempting to comply and instead allow them to pay an amount 
equal to 3% of their project directly to the city for use by the city on Gateway Green 
projects within the GG-O Overlay District or other Gateway and Green projects on city 
improvements or parks. Recommend removal. This requirement has not been enforced, 
and the Finance Department has no associated fund.  

   (F)   Definitions. For the purpose of this section, certain terms and words are hereby 
defined.  

      BUFFER YARD. A landscaped area intended to separate and partially obstruct the view 
of two adjacent land uses or properties from on another. 

      EVERGREEN PLANTING. Dense planting of evergreen plant material that creates an 
opaque barrier. 

      GATEWAY. An intersection designated as an entrance into the city or into the downtown 
area that is planned for additional design elements to “announce” the arrival to a special 
place. 

      LANDSCAPED AREA. The area within the boundaries of a given lot, site, or common 
development consisting primarily of plant material, including but not limited to grass, 
trees, shrubs, vines, ground cover, and other organic plant materials; or grass paver 
masonry units installed such that the appearance of the area is primarily landscaped. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 132 / 153



      STORMWATER RETENTION PONDS. Ponds or basins designed to hold rainwater that 
has run-off the surrounding landscape of lawns, roads, and rooftops. 

   Appendix A 

Botanical Name 

Common Name 

   Appendix A 

Botanical Name 

Common Name 

   Approved Deciduous Shade Trees 

Aesculus glabra  

Ohio Buckeye 

Catalpa speciosa  

Northern Catalpa 

Celtis occidentalis  

Common Hackberry 

Ginkgo biloba  

Ginkgo 

Gleditsia triacanthos var. inermis  

Honeylocust (avoid “Sunburst”; other varieties okay) 

Gymnocladus dioicus  

Kentucky Coffeetree 

Populus deltoieds  

Eastern Cottonwood (only on very large sites; may not be used for parking lot plantings) 

Quercus alba  

White Oak 

Quercus macrocarpa  

Bur Oak 

Quercus macrocarpa x robur  

Heritage Oak 

Quercus muehlenbergii  

Chinkapin Oak 

Quercus robur  

English Oak 

Tilia americana  

American Linden 

Tilia cordata  

Littleleaf Linden 

Tilia tomentosa  

Silver Linden 

Ulmus americana  

American Elm (Dutch Elm Disease resistant varieties only) 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 133 / 153



Ulmus x sp.  

Hybrid Elm (check with Development Services for specific varieties) 

Due to the Emerald Ash Borer destroying large quantities of Ash trees in the Eastern United 
States and its progressive movement west, Ash trees will be prohibited in GG-O Districts 

   Approved Small Ornamental Trees 

Amelanchier x grandiflora  

Serviceberry 

Crataegus crusgalli x intermis  

Thornless Cockspur Hawthorn (horizontally branching-not for use in parking lots or near 
sidewalks) 

Crataegus ambigua  

Russian Hawthorn 

Malus spp.  

Crabapple (choose varieties with small and persistent fruit) 

Syringa reticulate  

Japanese Tree Lilac 

Viburnum lentago  

Nannyberry Viburnum 

Acer tataricum  

Tatarian Maple “Hot Wings” 

Prunus americana  

American Plum “Princess Kay” 

Quercus gambelii  

Gambel Oak 

   Approved Evergreen Trees 

Abies concolor  

Concolor fir 

Juniperus spp.  

Juniper (columnar junipers may only be used for screening purposes; will not count as 
required tree on street frontages) 

Juniperus scopulorum  

Rocky Mountain Juniper 

Juniperus virginiana  

Eastern Redcedar 

Picea glauca var. densata  

Black Hills Spruce 

Picea pungens  

Colorado Spruce 

Pinus aristata  

Bristle Cone Pine 

Pinus cembroides  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 134 / 153



Pinyon Pine 

Pinus contorta  

Lodgepole Pine 

Pinus flexilis  

Limber Pine (not salt tolerant; avoid use near parking lots and roadways) 

Pinus nigra  

Austrian Pine 

Pinus ponderosa  

Ponderosa Pine (not salt tolerant; avoid use near parking lots and roadways) 

  

(Ord. 4072, passed - -2012; Ord. 4151, passed - -2015) 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 135 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item New Bus4

Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change
Zoning Text Change to Chapter 25 Article 22 regarding Landscaping.

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 136 / 153



City of Scottsbluff Planning Commission    

Development Services Staff Report – Zachary Glaubius 

Prepared on: January 6, 2022  For Hearing of: January 10, 2022 
 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. Article 22 referred to as the landscaping code, provides standards for certain developments 

in the city’s jurisdiction (both within corporate limits and within the extra-territorial 

jurisdiction.   

 

 

II. STAFF COMMENTS 

A. In the draft ordinance, the majority of proposed changes are incorporation of parts of the 

GG-O. 

B. One other proposed change is the requirement of landscaping in the C-1 District, which is 

presently exempt. Developments in the C-1 district could be exempt from the landscaping 

ordinance  

C. Further review of the landscaping code, showed some overlap between screening standards 

and buffer yard requirements. 

D. Additionally, some of the screening standards are counterintuitive. Such as screening car 

lots from street rights-of-ways. Staff is looking into splitting screening standards into two 

subsections with one for abutting different zoning districts and another for street right-of-

ways.  

 

III. STAFF RECCOMENDATION 

A. Staff recommends the Planning Commission table the revision of the Chapter 25 Article 2 to 

further research and discuss revisions.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 137 / 153



ARTICLE 22:  LANDSCAPING 

Section 

   25-22-1   Definitions 

   25-22-2   Purpose 

   25-22-3   Applicability 

   25-22-4   Landscaping requirements 

   25-22-5   Materials and installation standards 

   25-22-6   Bufferyard provisions 

   25-22-7   Screening standards 

   25-22-8   Parking lot landscaping 

   25-22-9   Tree plantings 

   25-22-10   General provisions 

 

§ 25-22-1  DEFINITIONS. 

   Wherever used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings stated in this 
section unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

   BUFFERYARD. A landscaped area intended to separate and partially obstruct the view of 
two adjacent land uses or properties from one another. 

   IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE AREA. The total horizontal area of all buildings, roofed or 
covered spaces, paved surface areas, walkways and driveways, and any other site 
improvements that decrease the ability of the surface of the site to absorb water, expressed 
as a percent of site area. The surface water area of pools is excluded from this definition. 

   LANDSCAPE. To change the natural features of a plot of ground so as to make it more 
attractive by adding lawns, trees, bushes, or other decorative items.  

   LANDSCAPED AREA. The area within the boundaries of a given lot, site, or common 
development consisting primarily of plant material, including but not limited to grass, 
trees, shrubs, vines, ground cover, and other organic plant materials; or grass paver 
masonry units installed such that the appearance of the area is primarily landscaped. 

      (1)   INTERIOR LANDSCAPED AREA. Any landscaped area within a site exclusive of 
required perimeter landscaping. 

      (2)   PERIMETER LANDSCAPED AREA. Any required landscaped area that adjoins the 
exterior boundary of a lot, site, or common development. 

   LESS INTENSIVE ZONING DISTRICT. Any zoning district which appears above another 
zoning district in the following list is less intensive than the other district. For example, AR 
Agricultural Residential is less intensive than C-1 Central Business District. 

A Agricultural 

AR Agricultural Residential 

R-1 Single-Family 

R-1a Single-Family 

R-1b Rural Residential Estate District 

R-4 Heavy Density Multiple Family 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 138 / 153



R-6 Mobile Home 

O-P Office and Professional 

PBC Planned Business Center 

C-1 Central Business District 

C-2 Neighborhood Commercial 

C-3 Heavy Commercial 

M-1 Light Manufacturing and Industrial 

M-2 Heavy Manufacturing and Industrial 

  

  

   MORE INTENSIVE ZONING DISTRICT. Any zoning district which appears below another 
zoning district in the list which appears in the definition of LESS INTENSIVE ZONING 
DISTRICT in this section is more intensive than the other district. For example, C-1 Central 
Business District is more intensive than AR Agricultural Residential.  

(Ord. 3951, passed - -2007) 

 

§ 25-22-2  PURPOSE. 

   The provisions of this article provide additional guidance on the development of sites 
within the city by addressing landscaping and screening requirements. The provisions in 
this article are designed to improve the appearance of the community, buffer potentially 
incompatible land uses from one another, and conserve the value of properties within the 
city and its extra-territorial jurisdiction. The provisions in this article are further intended 
to expedite development approval by including predictable, uniform standards for 
landscaping. 

 

§ 25-22-3  APPLICABILITY. 

   The provisions of this section shall apply to all new development on each lot or site upon 
application for a preliminary or final plat, planned unit development, or building permit, 
except for the following: 

   (A)   Reconstruction or replacement of a lawfully existing use or structure following a 
casualty loss; 

   (B)   Remodeling, rehabilitation, or improvements to existing uses or structures which do 
not substantially change the location of structures, parking, or other site improvements; 

   (C)   Additions or enlargements of existing uses or structures which increase floor area or 
impervious coverage area by less than 20% of the building established on the site on the 
effective date of this chapter. Where such cumulative additions or enlargements are 20% or 
greater, these provisions shall apply only to that portion where the new development 
occurs; or 

   (D)   Lots unable to meet minimum requirements established for depth of landscaping, 
buffer zones, and parking requirements will be reviewed and approved by development 
services staff on a case-by-case basis as they are submitted for review of the new 
development. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 139 / 153



(E) Lots located in the C-1 District where the principal building is built along street 
abutting property lines including the front and side.  

(Ord. 4072, passed - -2012) 

 

§ 25-22-4  LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS. 

   (A)   Depth of landscaping. Landscaping shall be required adjacent to each street property 
line and shall extend from the right-of-way to a minimum depth inward of ten feet on 
private property for all land uses and zoning classifications. Provided however, that this 
requirement shall not be applicable to land in the C-1 District and to land which is in a 
planned unit development and which is used for single-family detached or attached 
(duplexes or townhouses) residential uses. dwellings (detached or attached) or two-family 
dwellings.  

   (B)   Obstructions. Landscape areas required by this chapter shall not be obstructed by 
any type or size of fence.  

   (C)   Inconsistent setback provision. In the event that the provisions of this section are 
inconsistent with any setback requirement applicable to a particular parcel, the provisions 
of this section shall control.  

 

§ 25-22-5  MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION STANDARDS. 

   (A)   Official list of recommended and prohibited plant materials. Plantings shall be used 
in required landscaped areas consistent with the official list of recommended and 
prohibited plant materials, provided through the office of the City PlannerDepartment of 
Development Services. All plant materials shall conform in size, species, and spacing with 
this section of the ordinance. 

   (B)   Minimum tree and shrub plant sizes. 

      (1)   Evergreens shall be a minimum of five to six feet in height, measured from the top 
of the root ball to the top of the tree. 

      (2)   Streetscape, or large, deciduous trees shall be a two one- and one-half inches 
caliper or larger, measured twelve inches above the root ball. 

      (3)   Small, or ornamental, deciduous trees shall be a one and one-half inch caliper or 
larger, measured 12 inches above the root ball. 

      (4)   Shrubs, if used, shall be two-gallon size or greater, or 18 to 24 15 inches in height if 
balled and burlapped. 

     (5) Perennials or ornamental grasses shall be one-quart size or greater.  

   (C)   Use of inorganic landscaping materials. 

(1) No artificial trees, shrubs, plants, or turf shall be used to fulfill the minimum 
requirements for landscaping.  

(2) Inorganic materials, such as stone or decorative pavers, may be used provided that 
such material does not comprise more than 25% of the minimum required 
landscaped area. When calculating the area to determine how much inorganic 
material may be used, the area of driveways and walkways shall not be counted. 

      (23)   Loose rock shall not be permitted within any required landscaped area which is 
within ten feet of a traveled street surface. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 140 / 153



 

§ 25-22-6  BUFFERYARD PROVISIONS. 

   (A)   Applications. These provisions apply when use is established in a more intensive 
zoning district which is adjacent to a less intensive zoning district. The owner, developer, 
or operator of the property in the more intensive zoning district shall install and maintain a 
20-foot deep landscaped bufferyard on his or her lot or site. Bufferyards are not required 
on single-family, duplex, or townhouse use types in the more intensive zoning district.   

   (B)   Landscaping in the bufferyard. Each required bufferyard shall be landscaped. Each 
bufferyard shall be landscaped with a minimum of one tree for each 500 square feet of 
bufferyard area. The majority of trees shall be evergreens. Each bufferyard shall be free of 
paved areas, accessways, and storage sites. Required trees must be planted in a manner to 
form a screen. 

(C) If a six-foot high solid wood or PVC fence or masonry wall is incorporated into the 
design, the buffer yard may be reduced by ten feet. Finished side of fencing will face 
abutting property. 

(D) When a street or public alley separates adjacent zoning districts requiring a buffer 
yard, no buffer yard is required. Applicable setback and landscaping requirements will still 
apply in these cases.  

 

 

§ 25-22-7  SCREENING STANDARDS. 

   (A)   Application. Screening is required when one or more of the following conditions is 
visible from a street right-of-way, or faces toward the boundary of a less intensive zoning 
district: 

      (1)   Outdoor storage areas, cargo containers, or storage tanks, unless otherwise 
screened; 

      (2)   Loading docks, refuse collection points, and other service areas; 

      (3)   Major machinery or areas housing a manufacturing process; 

      (4)   Major on-site traffic circulation areas or car, truck, and/or trailer parking, including 
vehicle sales lots; 

      (5)   Sources of glare, noise, or other environmental effects; 

      (6)   Bailing or stockpiling of cardboard or other shipping or packaging materials; or 

      (7)   Surface parking lots with 150 or more stalls directly adjacent to less intensive 
districts. over 6,000 square feet. 

(8) Waste receptacles including dumpsters, garbage cans, or grease containers 

(9) Rooftop mechanical and utility equipment 

(10) Ground or wall mounted mechanical equipment including HVAC equipment, 
transformers, generators, and gangs of multiple utilities.  

   (B)   Opaque barrier. A six-foot opaque barrier shall be provided which visually screens 
the conditions listed in the division (A) above from less intensive uses as follows or when 
visible from street right-of-way: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 141 / 153



      (1)   A solid wood, PVC, and/or masonry fence or wall at least six feet in height. 
Construction materials and type should match building exteriors or planned on-site fencing 
materials; 

      (2)   A landscaping screen, using evergreen or deciduous materials, capable of providing 
a substantially opaque, hedge-like barrier and attaining a minimum height of six feet within 
three years of planting and a mature height of at least six feet; 

      (3)   A landscaped earth berm with a maximum slope of three to one, rising no less than 
six feet above the existing grade of the lot line separating the zoning districts; or 

      (4)   Any combination of these methods that achieves a cumulative height of six feet. 

(5) Rooftop equipment shall be screened by parapet walls or an opaque enclosure around 
the equipment that is constructed of one of the materials used on the primary fac of the 
principal structure.  

   (C)   Screening; effect on drainage. Screening shall not adversely affect surface water 
drainage. 

   (D)   Permitted interruptions of screening. Screening may be interrupted to provide 
access drives to service areas or for loading purposes to buildings. Such breaks or 
interruptions shall not exceed 20% of the length of the required screened area. 

 

§ 25-22-8  PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING. 

   Unless otherwise noted, each off-street parking facility of over 6,000 square feet shall 
comply with the following regulations. 

   (A)   Each off-street parking facility shall provide a minimum landscaped buffer along any 
street property line as set forth in § 25-22-4 of this article. 

   (B)   Each parking facility that abuts a residential district shall provide a 20-foot 
landscaped buffer along its common property line with the residential district. 

   (C)   Any parking facility which abuts property in a residential district shall provide a 
fence, wall, landscape screen, or earth berm not less than four feet in height for the length 
of the common boundary. A grade change, terrace, or other site feature which blocks the 
sight line of headlights into a residential property may satisfy this requirement, subject to 
the determination of the City Planner. 

   (D)   Each parking facility of over 6,000 square feet shall provide interior landscaped area 
equal to no less than 5% of the total paved area of the parking facility. Parking facilities 
within the M-1 and M-2 Districts shall be exempt from this requirement. 

   (E)   Landscaping or screening installed in any required landscaped area shall not 
obstruct the view from the off-street parking facility to any driveway approach, street, 
alley, or sidewalk. Landscaping shall further not obstruct any views among parking spaces 
and circulation ways, or visibility between vehicles and pedestrians. 

(F) All landscape islands shall have a minimum of 100 square feet of open ground. 

 

§ 25-22-9  TREE PLANTINGS. 

   (A)   Quantity. A required landscaped area shall be landscaped with a minimum of one 
tree for each 500 square feet of required landscaped area. Trees do not need to be equally 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 142 / 153



spaced. Existing trees approved for preservation shall be counted toward satisfaction of 
this requirement.  

   (B)   Trees in parking lots. Any landscaped islands required to meet the interior 
landscaping requirements for parking lots shall include one-and one-inch two-inch caliper 
or larger deciduous tree, or one, one and one-half-inch caliper or larger ornamental tree, 
unless a light pole is located within the island.  Additional shrubs and/or ground cover shall 
be planted in each island.  

   (C)   Bonus. Any tree of an approved species planted or maintained with a caliper of three 
two inches or above shall count as one and one-quarter trees toward the satisfaction of the 
requirements of this section. An approved existing tree with a caliper of eight inches or 
above preserved on a site shall count as two trees toward the satisfaction of the 
requirements of this section. 

 

§ 25-22-10  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

   (A)   Time of application. The provisions contained in this section shall be applied for each 
individual lot or site when an application for a preliminary or final plat, planned unit 
development, or a building permit is made. A landscape plan shall be submitted with each 
application and shall include a drawing and a written landscape management plan. The 
plan shall be reviewed by the City Planner for compliance with the provisions of this 
section. 

   (B)   Maintenance of required landscaping. 

      (1)   Upon installation of required landscape materials, each owner shall take 
appropriate actions to ensure their continued health and maintenance. Required 
landscaping that does not remain healthy shall be replaced consistently with this section 
and the approved landscaping plan for the project. 

      (2)   Underground irrigation shall be provided for all required landscaped areas. Areas 
of low water use landscaping may be included but must be indicated on plans. Irrigation 
water must be available for the initial two years after planting to establish low-water use 
landscaping. 

   (C)   Obstruction of view. Landscaping or screening installed in any landscaped area shall 
not obstruct the view from or to any driveway approach, street, alley, or sidewalk.  

   (D)   Earth berm locations. Location of earth berms shall not impede drainage patterns. 
Earth berms should not be located over underground public utilities.  

   (E)   Exceptions. A development may continue to comply with the bufferyard and 
screening requirements in effect at the time of issuance of its original permit, regardless of 
whether an adjacent lot or site is subsequently rezoned to a less intensive district which 
would otherwise require compliance with bufferyard or screening provisions. 

   (F)   Performance guarantee. A performance guarantee will be required in the event a 
certificate of occupancy is issued prior to installation of all required landscaping. 

 

25-22-11 NATURE-BASED STORMWATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs) -  

(A) Nature-based or natural functioning stormwater BMPs shall be landscaped and 
developed in such a way as to enhance or be iin harmony with the surrounding site 
landscape. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 143 / 153



(B) Examples of nature-based BMPs include, but are not limited to: bioretention, 
retention ponds, extended detention basins, vegetated buffers, bioswales, 
infiltration basins/planters/trenches, rain gardens, and/or constructed wetlands.   

          (1)  Features should be “free form” following the natural contours of the land. If land 
lacks contour, the BMP shall be created to look like a natural landscape feature. Side slopes 
and lines should vary to give the appearance of a natural condition. 

               (2)  Trees and shrub groupings shall be planted intermittently along the BMP to 
create the appearance of the plants naturally occurring. 

               (3).   Approved erosion control measures will be required on all slopes.  

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 144 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item New Bus5

Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Change
Zoning Text Change to Chapter 25 Article 22 regarding Off-Street Parking.

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 145 / 153



ARTICLE 5:  OFF-STREET PARKING/LOADING 

Section 

   25-5-1   Spaces; required; when; number 

   25-5-2   Exceptions 

   25-5-3   Increased use; moved building 

   25-5-4   Location 

   25-5-5   Setback area 

   25-5-6   Stalls 

   25-5-7   Back-out parking 

   25-5-8   Public alley 

   25-5-9   Surface 

   25-5-10   Drainage 

   25-5-11   Bumper curbs 

   25-5-12   Walkways 

   25-5-13   Fence and screen 

   25-5-14   Lighting 

   25-5-15   Certificate of occupancy; condition to issuance 

   25-5-16   Uses 

   25-5-17   Off-street loading facilities 

 

§ 25-5-1  SPACES; REQUIRED; WHEN; NUMBER. 

   Whenever a lot or tract of land shall be used for any of the following purposes, the owner 
or occupant shall provide and maintain off-street motor vehicle parking spaces as follows. 

Land Use Parking Spaces 

Land Use 

Parking Spaces 

Auction house  

One space per 15 square feet gross floor area 

Bowling alley  

Six spaces per lane 

Church, mortuary, sports arena, and theater  

One space per four seats 

Club (residential), hotel, and rooming house  

One space per two guest rooms 

Dance hall, skating rink, and lodge hall  

One space per 100 square feet area 

Fraternity, sorority, and dormitory  

One space per two occupants 

General commercial use  

One space per 500 square feet gross floor area 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 146 / 153



Hospital  

One space per patient bed 

Motel  

One space per guest room 

Nursing home  

One space per two patient beds 

Offices  

One space per 400 square feet gross floor area 

Residential uses (except as provided below) 

One space per dwelling unit 

Residential - multi-dwelling unit 

One and one half-spaces per family 

Residential - multi-family  

One space per dwelling unit 

   Low income, elderly, or handicapped occupants 

Residential - condominium  

One space per apartment, plus one guest parking space for each five apartments 

Residential - townhouse (except as provided above) 

Two spaces per dwelling unit 

Residential - cluster houses  

Two spaces per dwelling unit 

Restaurant and bar  

One space per three seats 

Retail store and shopping center  

One space per 250 square feet gross floor area 

Wholesale, warehousing, and manufacturing  

One space per 1000 square feet gross floor area 

Provided, in a C-1 District, no off-street parking spaces are required 

A fractional requirement of one-half or more requires an additional space; a fractional 
requirement less than one-half does not 

  

 

§ 25-5-2  EXCEPTIONS. 

   If the Planning Commission finds from evidence submitted to it that fewer parking stalls 
than this article otherwise requires are needed for a lot or tract of land used for wholesale, 
warehousing, or manufacturing purposes, the Planning Commission may grant a permit to 
construct a facility that meets the actual need though less than generally required by this 
article. No off-street parking spaces are required for dwelling units or residential uses in a 
Central Business District (C-1) District. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000; Ord. 4152, passed - -2015) 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 147 / 153



§ 25-5-3  INCREASED USE; MOVED BUILDING. 

   If a building or structure required to have an off-street parking facility is increased in size, 
either by increasing the number of units by 15% or more, or by increasing the building size 
by 15% or more, additional off-street parking spaces shall be provided. If a building or 
structure is moved from one lot or tract of land to another, parking facilities must be 
provided to the same extent required for the construction of a new building or structure. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-4  LOCATION. 

   An off-street parking facility must be provided by the owner or person in possession of 
the premises which the facility is to serve, and shall be situated on the premises to be 
served by the facility. Provided, the Planning Commission may issue a special permit: 

   (A)   For two or more lots or tracts of land to be served by one facility; or 

   (B)   For a facility to be developed or used on a lot or tract of land (although such 
development or use otherwise would be prohibited by this chapter) for the purpose of 
serving an adjoining lot or tract of land in respect of which a special permit for a facility 
could be issued. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-5  SETBACK AREA. 

   A required off-street parking facility may not be placed in a front or side street building 
setback area, except as herein provided. A required off-street parking facility may be placed 
in a front street building setback area in Planned Business Center Districts. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-6  STALLS. 

   Off-street parking stalls, designed so that each stall can function independently of any 
other stall, shall meet the following minimum requirement: 

  

Type Width Stall Maneuvering Width 

90 degree  10 feet  18 feet  26 feet 

60 degree  10 feet  20 feet  20 feet 

45 degree  9.5 feet  19 feet  14 feet 

30 degree  9.5 feet  16 feet  12 feet 

Parallel    

  

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-7  BACK-OUT PARKING. 

   Back-out parking onto a public street is permitted only for single- and two-family 
dwellings. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 148 / 153



(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-8  PUBLIC ALLEY. 

   A public alley may be used as part of the maneuvering space requirement if the adjacent 
parking facilities are designed to utilize it as such. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-9  SURFACE. 

  All off-street parking facilities, including approaches, loading, storage, sales, rental, service 
and maneuvering areas, shall be surfaced with concrete, asphalt, asphaltic concrete, or 
brick and shall be maintained with materials sufficient to prevent mud, dust, or loose 
material except as provided below: 

(1) Sites within the A, AR, and R-1B Districts are exempt from this requirement. 

(2) In residential areas, all parking spaces and driveways used for parking shall be paved, 
including driveways that lead to paved parking spaces. 

(3) In M-1 and M-2 Districts, the paving requirement for parking and loading areas serving 
industrial uses is not required. The approach from the public right-of-way plus an 
additional ten (10) foot of driveway on private property must be paved. In addition, 
disability accessible parking spaces must be paved. 

   All-weather surfacing is required on all off-street parking, loading, storage, sales, rental, 
and service areas for motor vehicles, including service stations and used car lots. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-10  DRAINAGE. 

   Off-street parking facilities shall be designed and built to prevent the free flow of water 
onto adjacent properties. Parking lot design which discharges water onto public right-of-
way is subject to review and approval by the Stormwater Specialist. 

 Drainage, meeting specifications approved by the Planning Commission, shall be provided 
for an off-street parking facility. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-11  BUMPER CURBS. 

   A raised bumper curb, not less than six inches high and not less than six inches wide, shall 
be provided not less than 30 inches inside and parallel to the property line of any lot or 
tract of land abutting a public street on an off-street parking facility now existing or 
hereafter established. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-12  WALKWAYS. 

   If a walkway is provided on an off-street parking facility between a building and parking 
stalls, it must be at least 36 inches in width. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 149 / 153



 

§ 25-5-13  FENCE AND SCREEN. 

   A solid fence or suitable screen, not less than 48 inches in height, shall be constructed and 
maintained on an off-street parking facility parallel and adjacent to any line of the lot which 
is a common boundary line with any adjoining lot that is in an R District. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-14  LIGHTING. 

   If lighting is provided for an off-street parking facility, it shall be so constructed that the 
lights shine away from residential areas and public streets. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-15  CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY; CONDITION TO ISSUANCE. 

   A certificate of occupancy may not be issued for any building or structure until all off-
street parking facility requirements have been met and are ready for use. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-16  USES. 

   An off-street parking facility may be used only for parking automobiles; no sales activity, 
dead storage, repair work, dismantling, or servicing of any kind may be conducted on such 
a facility. Provided, if the number of off-street parking spaces provided on a lot or tract of 
land in an area zoned for commercial use exceeds the number of such spaces required in 
this article, merchandise may be offered for sale and sold on such excess spaces, and a 
truck used to haul such merchandise may be parked on such spaces during hours when the 
merchandise is being offered for sale. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

§ 25-5-17  OFF-STREET LOADING FACILITIES. 

   Each retail trade, retail or wholesale market, warehouse, supply house, wholesale and 
manufacturing business, hotel, hospital, laundry or dry cleaning establishments, or both, 
and any other place at which large amounts of goods are received or shipped, must have 
adequate off-street loading and unloading facilities. For each building having 10,000 square 
feet of gross floor area, one off-street loading space at least ten feet wide, 14 feet high, and 
40 feet long, must be provided on the premises. One additional such off-street loading 
space must be provided for each additional 40,000 square feet of gross floor area. No 
encroachment may be made on a public right-of-way. 

(Ord. 3639, passed - -2000) 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 150 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item Staff Rep1

(Informational Only):
Upcoming Panhandle Planning Workshop on January 25, 2022

2022 Schedule of Planning Commission Meetings

Annual review of Comprehensive Plan

Annual review of Subdivision and Zoning Code

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 151 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item Old Bus.1

(Informational Only):

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 152 / 153



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, January 10, 2022

Regular Meeting

Item Meet1

Confirm next meeting date of February 14, 2022

Staff Contact: Zachary Glaubius, Planning Administrator

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 1/10/2022 Page 153 / 153


